U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
P.O. BOX 14620

WASHINGTON, DC 20044-4620
esnail: OCR_DC@ed.gov

OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA OFFICE
SOUTHERN DIVISION ‘ District of Columbia, Virginia, North Carolina

Delivered by Fax and Surface Mail

October 16, 2003

Ms. Jane E. Genster

Vice President and General Counsel
Room 202, Healy Hal}

Georgetown University
Washington, D.C. 20057

Re: OCR Complaint No. 11-03-2017
Dear Ms. Genster:

In the course of OCR’s review of the subject complaint, OCR discovered that Georgetown
University applies a “clear and convincing” evidentiary standard to certain types of allegations of
sexual harassment. You have indicated that the University intends to revise this standard, but
have asked for a letter from our office regarding this matter. This is to confirm our discussions
of July 25, 2003, and more recently September 24, during which we explained that federal

courts, and therefore OCR, use a preponderance of the evidence standard in resolving allegations
of discrimination under all of our statutes, including Title IX. Thus, in order for a recipient’s
sexual harassment grievance procedures to be consistent with Title IX standards, the recipient
must draw conclusions about whether particular conduct rises to the level of sexual harassment

using a preponderance of the evidence standard. (See attached Evergreen resolution letter and
agreement. )

If you have any further questions about this letter, please feel free to contact me at 202 208 1669.

Sincerely,

r
12 A

sl f(/,é,(*/z@(
oward Kallem

Chief Attorney

D.C. Enforcement Office

Attachment

Our Mission is to ensure equal access {o education and (o promote educational excellence throughout the Nation.1]
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LJ.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS, REGION X
Hanry M. Jackson Federal Buliding
Mail Code 10-8010
915 Second Avenue, Room 3310
Saattie, Washington 98174-1099

April 4, 1995

Dr. Jane Jervis

President

The Evergreen State Coliege
Olympia, Washington 98505

Re:  The Evergreen State College
Case No. 10522064

Dear Dr. Jervis:

This letter is to notify you that the Office for Civil Rights {(OCR) has completed its
investigation of the above-referenced complaint against The Evergreen State College,
In the complaint, it was alleged that the College discriminated against a student on the
basis of sex. Specifically, the complaint alleged the following:

1. a College faculty member subjected the student to sexual harassment: and

2. the College failed to provide & prompt and equitable resolution to the
student's complaint of sexual harassment.

OCR conducted its investigalion under the authority of title 1X of the Education
Amendments of 1972 which prohibits discrimination on the basis of sex in any
education pragram or aclivily that reccives federal financial assistance from the U.S.
Departinent of Education. The College is a recipient of federal financial assistance
from this Department, '

The first issue investigated was whether the College, through its instructor,
discriminated against the student on the basis of sex by subjecting the student to sexual
haragsment in violation of Title [X. See 34 CFR 106.31(a).

The second issue investigated was whether the College's Title IX complaint or
grievance procedures failed to provide a prompt and an equitable resolution of the
sexual harassment complaint filed by the student in violation of Title 1X. See 34 CFR
106.8(b).

Ot miccian 1910 ensure squal aceess 1o education and ta promoie educarional excellence throughent the Nation.
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Page 2 - Dr. Jane Jervis

With respect to the first issuc, OCR has determined that the findings in this
investigation support a conclusion that the College is in compliance with Title IX.
With respect {o the sccond issue, OCR bas determined that the findings support a
conclusion that the College i3 not in compliance with respect to the issue investigated.
However, as discussed later in this letter, the College has voluntarily agreed 1o take
action that will bring the College into compliance on this issuc, '

Our findings and conclusions set forth below are based on a review and analysis of
writien information provided by the student and the College, as well as interviews
conducted with the student and College staff.

1.

During winter and spring quarters of the 1990-91 schaol year, the
professor taught a course in Quantum Theory Physics. The class met in
the professor's home approximately once a week.

The class was attended by approximatcly seven students, who continued in
the class over both quarters. The student began attending the Quantusn
Theory Physics class during spring quarter 1991, approximately the first
week of April. The student had not previously participated in any class
taught by the professor. At the time the swdent begun attending class, she
had not formally cnrolicd in the class.

The student initiated her attendance in the class by asking the professor if
she could attend for the spring quarter and receive two credits. The
student had atiended approximately eight classes before any of the alleged
improper conduct occurred. : '

The student was cnrollcd in a theater and politics class. The student had
previously written a play for thal class and was working on it during the
spring quarter. In late April or carly May, the student gave the professor
a copy of her play,

In late April or carly May 1991, approximately 2 weeks after the
professor received a copy of the play, the student met with the professor
at his home to review the play. The student's stated opinion is that she
was happy to have the professor look at the play since he was a published
writer, she wrs not getting feedback from the professor of the theater and
politics class, and she was flattcred that he wanted to have sn intelicctual

P.O%



BQ—GG—SS 2305

k. OCr REGCron b4 IDm

Page 3. Dr. Jane Jervig

10.

i,

On May 25 or 26, 1991, the Student me; gy the préfessor's home 1o
discuss the Play which had Just then beey, Petformed in ey theater and

kissed. Theye i3 & conflicy of evidence regarding whethep Or not the
kissing was consensual. J¢ j iti

Xpressed 3 romyngje interest in him and that the kissing was consensual
OCR Jacks sufficient evidence (o determine whe initiated the contact ang

“whether or not the contact Was consenteq tq by the Student.

On July 29, 1991, the professor wrote the studen; a letter. He stated that
he wag rying to understand why the studeng Was 50 bpset wigh him, thay

the student fo, whatever offenses thay he may have Committed whje},
Caused g dissolution of what he perceived their past re}ations:hip to be, and
(o extend to her a5, offer of s continuing fricndship.
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2. The student filed a formal Erievance with the College on November 25,
1991, asserting that the professor engaged in inappropriate sexua] conduct
on May 25 or 26, 1991,

is a ioQ-- No_ |
- The issue investigated was whether the College, through its tnstructor,

discriminated against the student on the basis of sex by subjecting the student to
sexual harassment in violation of Title IX.

The Title IX regulation states at 34 CFR 106.31(a) that no person shall, on the
basis of sex, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be
subjected to discrimination under any academic, extracurricular research,
Occupational training, or oiher education program or activity operated by a
recipient which receives or benefits from federal financial assistance.

OCR has jurisdiction over sexusl harassment issues under Title IX because such
conduct constitutes difTerential treatment on the hasis of sex. OCR defines
sexual harassinent as the verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature, imposed
on the basis of sex. by an employee or Rgent of a recipient that denies, limits,
provides different, or conditions the provisions of aid, benefits, services, or

for the harassment are employecs or agents of the institution, the instituation
itself is legally responsible for the conduct. If the harassment is carried out by
non-agents,-the institution will be found in noncompliance if it fails to
adequately respond to a notice of harassment.

The evidence is insufficient to support & finding that conduct of a sexual nature
took place prior to the May 25 or 26, 199], meeting at the professor’s home.
Because of conflicts in the testimony, the evidence docs not support & finding

Subsequent to this May 25 or 25, 1991, meeting in the professor’s home, the
student did give (he professor clear notice that she was not interested in g
romantic relationship and expressed an interest in conlinuing g friendship, His

-
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subsequent efforts to communicate with her by phone and letter are not
inconsistent with her expressed interest for continuing a friendship. OCR

relationship.

Because the evidence is insufficient to support a finding that the professor
engaged in unwelcome sexual conduct relative to the student or that the

OCR is unable to conclude that the College failed to comply with Title IX with
respect to the issue investigated.

l.  The College has gricvance procedurcs for use by persons at the College
- who believe they have been discriminated against within the Coliege
community because of race, color, national origin, gender, age, mantal

i

a-"_';{
]
o

2.  The fornal complaint procedures involve the following steps: filing a
complaint, AAO wnotification of the person alleged to have discriminated,
AAO-conducted case resolution conference, AAD invcstigalion,
deliberations, decision making, and action. With respect to taking action,

; the grievance procedures provide; in part, as follows:

g Action. If probable cause has beep found, and no
resolution agreed 10 . . ., action will be taken as follows:

(1) Student as respondent: the caMpus grievance

officer will take action in accordance with the
student conduct code and establish puidelinas.

.......
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(3) Faculty as respondent: The academic dean and
provost will take action in accordance with
Faculty Handbook guidelines.

On November 25, 1991, the student filed a sexual hurassment complaint
with the College's AAO.

On January 28, 1992, the AAO completed his investigation of the
student’s sexual harassiment complaint. The AAO concluded that the
evidence indicated that there was probable cause that the professor made
unwelcome sexuel advances, requests for sexual favors, and other verbal
conduct of a sexual nature which interfered with the student’s academic
environment.

On February 11, 1992, the AAO and the academic dean met with the
professor to discuss resolution, but the professor disputed the AAQ's
findings and conclusion and refused to enter into the resolution process.

Pursuant to subsection g.(3) of the College's gricvance procedures, the
provost continucd the resolution of the matter by taking action in
accordance with the Faculty Handbook. He recommended that the
Callege invoke Mid-Contract Termination With Adequate Cause
(MCTWAC). This process is designed to protect the vested rights of
College faculty and sets forth the process which the Colicge must follow
before taking actions with respect to conduct by a faculty member which
could result in termination or in some lesser sanction. One class of action
or conduct fikely to invoke the use of this process is identified as "scrious
violations of published standards to which the College holds all

faculty . . .." particularly with regard 10 certain specific policies including
the Collcge's sexual harassment policy. :

The MCTWAC process follows the following steps:

Congiliatipn: The provost atempts to reach a2 mutual settlement of the
matter through discussion with the facully member and others as

appropriate persons of cither party's choosing who might contribute 1o &
mutual settlement.

1=}
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Statement of Charges: If efforts at mutual setement prove futile, the

provost may issuc a Statement of Charges to the faculty member, thereby
initinting an informal “contested case_ *

Faculty Inquiry Committee (Committee): The College president chooses

five faculty members out of a pool of 25 1o serve on this Committee; with
an opportunity for both the provost and the charged faculty member to
challenge those selected. Both the facully member included in the issue
and the provost shall have a maximum of two challenges without stated
cause and additional challenges for cause.

Informal Conciliation and Hearings: The Committee attempts {0 reach a

satisfactory resolution through an informal “contested case” process which
can include reviewing documentation and taking testimony from witnesses.
The Committees' procedures may include direct discussion between the
partics involved concerning the alleged misconduct.

Formal Hearing: If conciliation fails, the Committee recommends to the
provost whether or not to proceed to a formal hearing and, if the provost
disagrees with- their recommendation, the provost must discuss the
recommendation with thc Committee before deciding whether to hold a
formal hearing. At a formal hearing before an administrative law judge,
the burden is on the Collcge to provide clear and convincing proof that the
faculty member has cngaged in conduct which warrants the sanction
proposed by the College. The faculty member has the right to present
his/her defense through the presentation of witnesses and documentary or
other evidence, as well as the right (o confront and cross examine all
wilnesses. :

In this case, the Committee held an informal hearing to which they called
the student, the professor, the AAQ, and others to give testimony. On
June 25, 1992, the provost reccived the Committee's recommendations.
The Committee reached the following decision:

It is this committec’s unanimous conclusion that the College
failed to provide clear and convincing evidence to support its
charges against the [professor]. The College’s policy states,
“the burden of proof of adequate cause rests on the institution.
We find that the College did not satisfy this burden of proof.
In as much as the respondent’s liability is not establishéd, there
is no basis for recommending any sanctions against him "

-
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9.  The provost, in consultation with the College’s attorney, decided not to
proceed to & formal hearing.

10.  On June 26, 1992, the professor wrote two letters of commitment to the
Committee. He stated he would "not initiate any personal contact with
[the student] and [would do his] best 10 avoid any such contact were she to
attempt 1t." He also stated a commitment to change his overall approach
to interacting with students and specifically committing that:

I will reduce my contact with students insofar as it is consistent
with the performance of my duties; 1 will not permit my home
to become an extension of school; my social contacts with
students under my scholarly supervision will come to an end
except where necessitated by the needs of the program. .

1{.  Onluly6, 1992, the professor wrote a further lelter to the Committee
stating among other things that he wanted it understood that his
commitments were strictly voluntary and should not be interpreted in any
way as his agreeing to any sanctions.

12. OnJuly 8, 1992, the Committce responded to the professor,
acknowledging receipt of his letters of commitment, clarifying that the
commitment to not contact the studen! should include letters and phone
calls, and stating an expectation that the professor would not unilaterally
‘decide the commitments made were nio fonger nceded without first
consulling with the Committes members.

13.  No further actions were taken by the Coliege and the professor,

+

nalysi ion--

The issue investigated was whether the College's Title IX complaint or
grievance procedures failed to provide a prompt and an equitable resolution of
the sexual harassment complaint filed by the student in violation of Title 1X.

The Title IX regulation requires that the resolution process provided for in a
recipient’s grievance procedures be equitable or fair and just. The evidentiary
standard of preof applied to Title IX actions is that of a “preponderance of the
evidence.® '
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While we were unable

ID= P

to conclide that the procedures s applied in this cage

were untimely, OCR found that the College's grievance procedures provide for

differing processes for

the ultimate resolution of & discrimination complaint

depending upon the status of the respondent (the Person against whom the
charges of discrimination are being brought) in the College’s community.

When the respondent j

s a faculty member, a5 in the instant case, the resolution

adverse employment action should be taken against the faculty member. The

factual determinations

leading to the resolution of an emplayment action

between the College and a faculty memnber are decided by a Faculty Inquiry
Committee, a Eroup comprised of the facully member’s peers. The faculty
member has the right to affect the make up of this committee through
challenges. The faculty member also has the right to present evidence through
witness testimony or documentary or other evidence. And, (he standard of
evidence required of this committee, in reaching a decision under the
MCTWAC resolution process, is one of "clear and convincing proof," g higher

standard than that of a

The fing) resolution of
employment action ma

“preponderance of the evidence.

a discrimination complaint which formed the basis of the
Y be decided at this juncqure (as in the case before us} as,

under the MCTWAC process, a decision in favor of the faculty member closes
out a complaint of unlawfy] discrimination brought against that faculty member.

Thus, OCR concludes

that, ta the extent (hat the College’s Title 1X gricvance

process requires adherence to provisions of the Faculty Handbaook, the process

the person bringing the complaini. The faculty member can influence the
decision through persvasion (the presentation of histher case) and the person

bringing the complaing
adhere to a heavier bu

can not; and the decision reached by this group must
rden of proof than that which is required under Title IX.

Therefore, the evidence supports a conclusion that the Coliege is not in

compliance with Title

1X with regard 10 the issuc investigated,

a9
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The College and OCR entered into discussions regarding the area of noncompliance
identified in the above findings. As a result of these discussions, the College has
agreed to take voluntary corrective actions as set forth in the enclosed Settlement
Agreement to ensure that its grievance procedures shall provide for a prompt and
equitable resolution of complaints alleging acts prohibited under Title IX . OCR has
concluded that upon full implementation of the actions and commitments contained in
the Agreement, the College will be in compliance with Title IX. Therefore, based on
the College’s commitment to implement the actions specified in the enclosed
Agrecement, we are closing the ahove-referenced case as of the date of this lefter,

This determination of compliance with Title TX is contingent upon the College’s full
implementation of commitments set forth in the Agreement. The College’s failure (o
honor these commitments may result in further action by OCR with respect to this
case.

This letter is not intended, nor should it be construed, to cover any other issues
regarding compliance with Title 1X that may exist and that are not discussed herein.

Thank you and your staff for the coaperation extended o my staff during the
investigation and resolution of this case. If you have any questions regarding this
letter, please contact W. Frederick Greenlee, Attorney Advisor, at (206) 220-7895.

Enclosure
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SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT
INTRODUCTION

A complaint investigation of The Evergreen State College having been conducted by
the Office for Civil Rights (OCR), U.S. Department of Education, under the authority
granted by tile TX of the Education Amendments of 1972, the investigation (Casc No.
10922064) having been completed and comphance concerns having been identified,
the parties resolve and coaciliate this matter as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS
A.  The parties to this Settlement Agreement are the College and OCR.

B.  This Agreement shall become effective when the authorized representatives for
both partics have sigaed the Azreement,

C.  Itis understood that this Agreement docs not constitute an admission by the
College of any violation of Title IX or of any other law.

D. Thc parties agree that this Agreement resolves only those compliance concermns
identified by OCR in the investigation of Case No. 10922064, Any other
compliance matters shall be dealt with and resolved in accordance with the
proccdures and standards in the regulation applicable to such matters.

E. In consideration of the College's implementation of the provisions of this
Agreement, OCR agrees not to initiate eaforcement proceedings with respect to
the compliance matters addressed in the referenced complaint investigation. It
is mgreed, however, thal in the event the College violates any provision of this
Agreement, OCR will take appropriate measures to effect compliance with
Title IX with respect to these matters.

SUBSTANTIVE PROVISION

By May 31, 1995, the College will revise its grievance procedures intended for use
by persons at the College who believe they haye been discriminated against within the
College community 5o that the procedures provide fur prompt and equitable resclution
of complaints alleging any action prohibited by Title IX. Specifically, as to student
complaints agzainst faculty members brought under these procedures which result in
proceedings under the Mid-Contract Termination With Adequate Causc process: the
College shall ensure that the student complainant is (1) afforded an opportunity to
influenca the composition of any panel considering the complaint or any sanction
against the respondent faculty member that is comparable (0 that of the respondent
faculty member, and (2) an opportunity to present information that is ¢omparable to
that of the respondent faculty member. In addition, the College's procedures will
incorporate the appropnate cvidentiary standard applied to actions brought under

=
¢
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Title IX. The appropriate standard of proof to be applied 1o the resolution of any and
all complaints alleging action prohibited by Title IX, including final decisions as to
sanctions,, is that of a preponderance of the evidence. -

IV. REPORTING PROVISION

By Junc 30, 1993, the College will provide OCR with 3 copy of its revised employee
and student grievance procedures as described in section 111 of this Agreement. And,
the College will advise OCR as to the method of notice piven to the members of itg
community of the revised procedures.

Signed:

I orr JZ/??; -
Date

| , - | ) L- -y
G'a’t‘y D. )a;kson Date
Regional Civil Rights Director
Région X

- .
,\\ .
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